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From: Chris LaHatte <chris.lahatte@icann.org>
Date:Wednesday, July 6, 2016 at 2:17 PM
To:
Subject: Application for Dot Web
 
Dear Mr Rasco
 
I have received a complaint from one of the applicants for dot web as follows:-
 
One or more applicants for dot web made a complaint to the Ombudsman about changes to the dot 
web application by one of the applicants, being NU DOT CO LLC. 
There is evidence from them (which I have seen) which reveals that there have been changes to the 
composition of NU DOT CO LLC's Board that require it to go through an ICANN change process.  

The complaint is that because there has been a failure to disclose material changes, that it is unfair to 
the other applicants until the disclosure has been made and that accordingly, the auction ought to be 
postponed until disclosure has been made. So I have opened an ombudsman complaint file about 
this matter. It may be an issue where the enquiry ought to be directed to this applicant or they could 
contact this office if they wish to discuss the matter. I am not sure of their appropriate contact 
details, and it may be useful to pass this on to them. When I have this information, I can investigate 
the facts of this matter and be able to make a recommendation.
 
Regards
 
Chris LaHatte
Ombudsman
Blog  https://omblog.icann.org/
Webpage http://www.icann.org/en/help/ombudsman
Please leave feedback on how I am doing http://www.icannombudsman.feedback/
Pronouns used: he, his, him
 
 
 
Confidentiality
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All matters brought before the Ombudsman shall be treated as confidential.  The Ombudsman shall also take 
all reasonable steps necessary to preserve the privacy of, and to avoid harm to, those parties not involved in 
the complaint being investigated by the Ombudsman. The Ombudsman shall only make inquiries about, or 
advise staff or Board members of the existence and identity of, a complainant in order to further the 
resolution of the complaint.  The Ombudsman shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure that if staff 
and Board members are made aware of the existence and identity of a complainant, they agree to maintain the 
confidential nature of such information, except as necessary to further the resolution of a complaint.
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Begin forwarded message:
From: Chris LaHatte <chris.lahatte@icann.org>
Subject: RE: Dot Web Auction
Date: July 10, 2016 at 1:58:48 PM PDT
To: Christine Willett <christine.willett@icann.org>
Cc: Amy Stathos <amy.stathos@icann.org>, Herb Waye <herb.waye@icann.org>
Thanks Christine. I have asked Jon Nevitt to comment at this stage
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
All matters brought before the Ombudsman shall be treated as confidential.  The Ombudsman shall 
also take all reasonable steps necessary to preserve the privacy of, and to avoid harm to, those parties 
not involved in the complaint being investigated by the Ombudsman. The Ombudsman shall only 
make inquiries about, or advise staff or Board members of the existence and identity of, a 
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complainant in order to further the resolution of the complaint.  The Ombudsman shall take all
reasonable steps necessary to ensure that if staff and Board members are made aware of the existence 
and identity of a complainant, they agree to maintain the confidential nature of such information, 
except as necessary to further the resolution of a complaint.
 
 
From: Christine Willett
Sent: Saturday, July 09, 2016 4:02 AM
To: Chris LaHatte <chris.lahatte@icann.org>
Cc: Amy Stathos <amy.stathos@icann.org>; Herb Waye <herb.waye@icann.org>
Subject: Re: Dot Web Auction
 
Dear Chris,

I hope that this email finds you well. I know that you have been in communication with NU DOT
CO LLC, to inquire about the recent complaint filed by Donuts regarding its ownership and
potential impact on the .WEB/.WEBS auction.

As you know, my team had reached out to NU DOT CO LLC previously, and we received
confirmation that NU DOT’s application materials were still true and accurate. In an effort to be
extremely cautious, I reached out to Mr. Jose Ignacio Rasco (the application primary contact for
NU DOT’s .WEB application) again today to ensure that our understanding of his previous
response was accurate. During the call, he explained the following:

1. When ICANN previously contacted him about potential application changes, he assumed
that the confirmation was part of the standard auction process, and his response was relatively
brief. The email from the Ombudsman provided him with more context. Now that he has a
better understanding about the complaint and what is going on, he can provide us with more
detailed information.
2. NU DOT is structured as an LLC, which does not have “directors,” but rather “managers”
and “members.” Neither the managers nor the members have changed since the application’s
submission.
3. NU DOT’s operating agreement has not changed since the application’s submission.
4. He understands that the .WEB/WEBS auction price is expected to be high, and that some
of his competitors are upset that he was not willing to resolve contention outside of the ICANN
auction.
5. He was contacted by a competitor who took some of his words out of context and is using
them as evidence regarding the alleged change in ownership. In communicating with that
competitor, he used language to give the impression that the decision to not resolve contention
privately was not entirely his. However, this decision was in fact his. He does not believe that it
is appropriate that this email conversation is being used as evidence.

Mr. Rasco indicated that he had provided you with similar information, but I wanted to share the
details of our conversation in case they can provide you with a more complete picture. If you
have any questions, please let me know.

Best,
Christine
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From: Jon Nevett [mailto: ]
Sent:Wednesday, July 06, 2016 10:43 PM
To: Christine Willett <christine.willett@icann.org>
Cc: Amy Stathos <amy.stathos@icann.org>; Herb Waye <herb.waye@icann.org>; Chris LaHatte <
chris.lahatte@icann.org>
Subject: Re: Dot Web Auction
 
Hi folks.  When do you think we will have a decision on this request?  Time is really of 
the essence.  Thanks.  Jon

Jonathon Nevett
Co-Founder & EVP, Donuts Inc.

 
 
 
 

On Jul 3, 2016, at 11:09 AM, Jon Nevett  wrote:
 
Hi folks. I understand that Chris's paragraph may be sent verbatim to NU Dot Co, 
so I make the following suggested changes in redline form below.  We would like 
to renew our request for an immediate postponement of the auction scheduled in 
just over three weeks time for the following reasons:
 
1.         The auction is in about 3 weeks and there is credible evidence that one of 
the applicants has a material change to its application and hasn't gone through the 
ICANN change process.  The material change includes a change to the Board of 
Directors and a potential change of control and/or ownership.  Such a change may 
be in violation of Module 1, Section 1.2.7 and Module 6, Section 10 of the AGB.
 
2.         It is unfair for the other applicants to be preparing for an auction against a 
party that has had non-public changes to its application and hasn't gone through 
the ICANN change process.  We just have the transparency in the process to 
know with whom we are participating in an auction.  
 
3.         Most of the .web applicants already asked for a voluntary extension of the 
auction.
 
4.         There is a pending ICANN accountability mechanism being utilized to 
investigate potential violations of the AGB and precedent dictates that ICANN 
should postpone the auction pending the result of the accountability mechanism.  
 
5.         .WEB likely will be one of the larger auctions and it is better that it be 
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conducted cleanly and not with a pending ICANN accountability mechanism or a 
cloud surrounding the TLD based on a potential change of control in violation of 
the AGB.  
 
6.         Even if the other applicant denies that any changes have been made, we 
have credible evidence that needs to be investigated and all the other applicants 
deserve at least 30 days from the end of the investigation to prepare for the 
auction.
 
Because of upcoming triggers and financial preparations necessary before this 
auction, please announce the postponement as soon as possible.  It doesn't make 
sense to even wait to hear back from the other applicant before a postponement is 
announced because regardless of what they say, an extension is the appropriate 
action considering the time period before the auction.  What they say and the 
result of the investigation should just go to when the auction is rescheduled.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 
Thanks again for your help and consideration.  
 
Best,
 
Jon
------------------- 
A visitor, who is a  One or more applicants for dot web, has made a complaint to the 
Ombudsman about changes to the dot web application by one of the applicants, 
being NU DOT CO LLC. He says that t There is evidence from them (which I have 
seen) which reveals that there have been changes to the composition of NU DOT 
CO LLC's Board that require it to go through an ICANN change process.  one of 
the board members of this applicant company, is no longer taking an active part in 
the running of the company, and that there are several other directors, not 
specifically specified or named. The complaint is that because there has been a failure 
to disclose material changes, that it is unfair to the other applicants until the 
disclosure has been made and that accordingly, the auction ought to be postponed 
until disclosure has been made. So I have opened an ombudsman complaint file 
about this matter. It may be an issue where the enquiry ought to be directed to this 
applicant or they could contact this office if they wish to discuss the matter. I am not 
sure of their appropriate contact details, and it may be useful to pass this on to them. 
When I have this information, I can investigate the facts of this matter and be able to 
make a recommendation.
 
 

Jonathon Nevett
Co-Founder & EVP, Donuts Inc.
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On Jun 30, 2016, at 9:49 AM, Chris LaHatte <chris.lahatte@icann.org> 
wrote:
 
Hi
 
A visitor, who is an applicant for dot web, has made a complaint to the 
Ombudsman about changes to the dot web application by one of the 
applicants, being NU DOT CO LLC. He says that there is evidence from 
them (which I have seen) which reveals that one of the board members of 
this applicant company, is no longer taking an active part in the running of 
the company, and that there are several other directors, not specifically 
specified or named. His complaint is that because there has been a failure to 
disclose material changes, that it is unfair to the other applicants until the 
disclosure has been made and that accordingly, the auction ought to be 
postponed until disclosure has been made. So I have opened an ombudsman 
complaint file about this matter. It may be an issue where the enquiry ought 
to be directed to this applicant or they could contact this office if they wish 
to discuss the matter. I am not sure of their appropriate contact details, and it 
may be useful to pass this on to them. When I have this information, I can 
investigate the facts of this matter and be able to make a recommendation
 
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
All matters brought before the Ombudsman shall be treated as confidential.  The 
Ombudsman shall also take all reasonable steps necessary to preserve the privacy of, 
and to avoid harm to, those parties not involved in the complaint being investigated 
by the Ombudsman. The Ombudsman shall only make inquiries about, or advise 
staff or Board members of the existence and identity of, a complainant in order to 
further the resolution of the complaint.  The Ombudsman shall take all reasonable 
steps necessary to ensure that if staff and Board members are made aware of the 
existence and identity of a complainant, they agree to maintain the confidential 
nature of such information, except as necessary to further the resolution of a 
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complaint.
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Mr. LaHatte,

Thank you for bringing this to my attention. There have been no changes to the Nu Dotco, LLC application. Neither the
governance, management nor the ownership in Nu Dotco has changed. In an LLC, there are no directors, it is a manager
managed company, as designated by the Members of the LLC within the Operating Agreement of the Limited Liability Company.
There has never been an amendment to that operating agreement. There are no new “directors,” nor have any left the
company, and while the managers are ultimately responsible for the LLC, as a Manager, I take my duties very seriously and for
major decisions, I confer with the Members (i.e. shareholders), which again for clarification, have never changed. I hope this
clarification puts this matter to rest.

Regards,

Jose I. Rasco

Nu Dotco, LLC

On Jul 7, 2016, at 11:24 AM, Chris LaHatte <chris.lahatte@icann.org> wrote:

Dear Mr Rasco
 
I have been shown an email which suggests that one of your directors is no longer 
taking an active part in the application, and that there are other directors now 
involved. The complainant also suggested that your shareholders have changed since 
the original application. It was suggested that this would change the auction by 
making knowledge of your applicant company different, and therefore it was unfair 
to the other applicants. I'm sure you can clarify this.
 
What they were seeking was a postponement of the auction for a further period.
 
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
Ombudsman shall also take all reasonable steps necessary to preserve the privacy of, and to 
avoid harm to, those parties not involved in the complaint being investigated by the 
Ombudsman. The Ombudsman shall only make inquiries about, or advise staff or Board 
members of the existence and identity of, a complainant in order to further the resolution of 
the complaint.  The Ombudsman shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure that if 
staff and Board members are made aware of the existence and identity of a complainant, 
they agree to maintain the confidential nature of such information, except as necessary to 
further the resolution of a complaint.
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Subject: RE: Postponement of the .WEB auction
Date: July 12, 2016 at 8:25:25 PM PDT
To: Christine Willett <christine.willett@icann.org>
Cc: Amy Stathos <amy.stathos@icann.org>

Hi Christine

 
I have not seen any evidence which would satisfy me that there has been a material change to the 
application. So my tentative recommendation is that there is nothing which would justify a 
postponement of the auction based on unfairness to the other applicants. Is there any particular 
reason why a postponement could not be made anyway or is the preparation for the auction too far 
advanced? I make that suggestion not because I agree with the complaint made by Donuts, but 
because it would prevent them from perhaps taking further accountability action based on a refusal 
to postpone, as of course this company has demonstrated that they will be aggressive about use of 
such accountability functions.

 
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
All matters brought before the Ombudsman shall be treated as confidential.  The Ombudsman shall also take all 
reasonable steps necessary to preserve the privacy of, and to avoid harm to, those parties not involved in the complaint 
being investigated by the Ombudsman. The Ombudsman shall only make inquiries about, or advise staff or Board 
members of the existence and identity of, a complainant in order to further the resolution of the complaint.  The 
Ombudsman shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure that if staff and Board members are made aware of the  
existence and identity of a complainant, they agree to maintain the confidential nature of such information, except as 
necessary to further the resolution of a complaint.
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